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LOCATION OF MEMBER
BRANCHES

NORTHLAND REGION

NZCU Steelsands
Marsden Point
Westforce Credit Union
Whangarei

Aotearoa Credit Union
Whangarei
AUCKLAND REGION
Aotearoa Credit Union
Botany Junction
Clendon

Glen Innes

Mangere

Otahuhu

Otara

Papakura

Papatoetoe

Carbine Credit Union
Mt. Wellington

NZCU Auckland
Auckland Airport
Penrose

Manukau City

Fisher & Paykel Credit
Union

East Tamaki

NZCU Employees
Penrose

NZICU Steelsands
Auckland City
Glenbrook
Waiuku

Westforce Credit Union
Avondale

Great Barrier Island
Onehunga

Papakura

Pukekohe

WAIKATO REGION

Aotearoa Credit Union
Hamilton

First Credit Union
Hamilton City
Te Aroha

NZCU North
Hamilton City
Matamata
Ngaruawahia
Te Kauwhata
Tokoroa

Thames

Waikato Hospital

BAY OF PLENTY
REGION

AWHI Credit Union

Opotiki

Rotorua

Caxton Employees
Credit Union
Kawerau

First Credit Union
Tauranga
Tauranga Hospital

Credit Union Central
Kawerau
Kopeopeo
Murupara

Rotorua

Taneatua

Te Ngae

NZCU North
Kawerau

Taupo

Turangi
Whakatane

Mt. Maunganui
Papamoa Beach
Greerton
Te Puke
Bethlehem

NZCU Rotorua
Rotorua
TARANAKI REGION

NZCU Baywide
New Plymouth

GISBORNE REGION
AWHI Credit Union
Gisborne

NZICU Baywide
Gisborne

HAWKE'S BAY REGION

Credit Unionkqu Health
Hastings

Heretaunga Building Society
Hastings
Napier Building Society

Napier

NZICU Baywide
Dannevirke
Hastings

Napier

Waipukurau

Wairoa

MANAWATU/
WANGANUI REGION
Aotearoa Credit Union
Wanganui

NZICU Baywide
Palmerston North
Palmerston North
Hospital

Wanganui

Wanganui Hospital

WELLINGTON REGION
Aotearoa Credit Union
Porirua

NZICU Baywide
Lower Hutt
Masterton

Porirua

Wainuiomata

NZ Firefighters’ Credit
Union

Petone

United Credit Union
Johnsonville
Wairarapa Building
Society

Masterton

New Zealand Police &
Families Credit Union
Wellington

NELSON REGION
Nelson Building Society
Nelson

Motueka

Richmond

Takaka

NZCU South

Nelson

Motueka

Richmond

Takaka

Nelson Port

WEST COAST REGION

Nelson Building Society
Greymouth

Murchison

Westport

NZCU South
Greymouth

CANTERBUBY REGIGN
Christchurch
Emergency Services
Credit Union
Christchurch

NZCU South

Hornby

Shirley

Timaru

OTAGO REGION
NZCU South

Dunedin
Oamaru

SOUTHLAND REGION
Alliance Group Credit
Union

Invercargill

NZCU South

Invercargill

Gore




group profit for year

$1,509,ooo NZACU OVERVIEW

OUR PROFILE
The New Zealand Association of Credit Unions (NZACU) is

total annual the industry association for credit unions and mutual building
dividend paid 8 declared societies. Our Members provide an important option in the

New Zealand financial services market and have more than

o 150 years’ banking history in communities across the country.
’ OUR MISSION

The NZACU exists to represent, promote and support Members
and provide cost effective business services.

— OUR VISION
-in-
All Members and the NZACU cooperating together to grow.

New Zealanders bank* OUR HISTORY AND OWNERSHIP
with an Nz ACU Member The New Zealand Association of Credit Unions came into

existence in 1961 as the New Zealand Credit Union League. In
1989 we became the New Zealand Association of Credit Unions.

NEW ZEALANDERS BANKING” We are owned by 20 Member credit unions and represent in
WITH OUR MEMBERS total 21 credit unions and 4 mutual building societies, with total
220,000 : k assets of $1.26 billion.
200,000 OUR MEMBERS
NZACU represents credit unions and building societies that meet
180,000 the financial services needs of more than 210,000
New Zealanders. With a focus on members, not shareholder
160,000 profits, customer satisfaction levels for our Members are among
the highest in the market. They work hard to serve communities
140,000 throughout New Zealand, both in main centres and in small

2009 2010 2011 2012 towns.

OUR FUTURE

Credit unions and mutual building societies are building their
strength and visibility to ensure they are considered as the first

NZACU MEMBER ASSETS AS AT 30 JUNE

option in the communities they service. Ongoing reviews of
our governance, pricing, service and products will continue to
ensure we offer our Members what they need to satisfy their
current and future members. We will continue to encourage
working together to harness the collective strength of credit
unions and mutual building societies.

Millions

THE NZACU AND THE INTERNATIONAL

CREDIT UNION MOVEMENT

The NZACU is committed to operating according to International
Credit Union Operating Principles founded on the philosophy

of cooperation and democracy. NZACU is a member of the
World Council of Credit Unions (WOCCU) which ensures we
have up-to-date information and cooperation from credit union
organisations worldwide.

*Credit unions and building societies are not registered banks

New Zealand Association of Credit Unions ANNUAL REPORT 2012 page 1




17,182

calls answered at the

NZACU provides a focal point for Member credit unions and - @
building societies in New Zealand. This allows the efficient Information Service
dissemination of information to our Members and ensures that chaunels uptime was

every Member organisation, regardless of size, is heard.

NZACU provides our Member organisations with a range of %
financial services, banking and insurance products . Products .
are tailored to meet the needs of members.

Our core products include:

e FACTS Computer Bureau — 24/7 real time bureau and core

banking software platform with a full suite of savings and %
loans products. Functionality includes card processing,
internet, telephone and text banking

e Accesscard - which can be used at all ATM and EFTPOS increase in media reports
terminals throughout New Zealand and overseas where the e e
on NZACU/Credit Unions

MAESTRO logo is displayed

® Accesscash — nationwide network of over 90 ATMs

e AccessDebit MasterCard® - a Debit MasterCard card
that can be used on-line, at ATM and EFTPOS terminals
throughout New Zealand and at over 34 million locations
overseas wherever MasterCard is accepted (due to be
launched late 2012)

ACCESSCASH ATM NETWORK TRANSACTIONS

In addition to this, NZACU also provides the following services:

o

® | ocal help desk support

Millions

e Central Banking - central treasury system for managing
credit union liquidity

0.5

® | earning and development opportunities for directors and
managers in the prudent management of their organisations

e Technical assistance to help Members achieve their
objectives, including:
— regulatory requirements
— product development
- planning
- public relations

iﬁ?&

AccessDebit

J R TEMPLET
CREDIT UNIC
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CUI rebate paid to
credit unions

$429,000

contribution to Group

NZACU PRODUCTS &
SERVICES

m ® CREDIT UNION INSURANCE

NZACU provides Members with a range of very competitive
insurance products such as funeral, loan protection and motor
vehicle insurance under the Credit Union Insurance (CUI) brand.

We are constantly reviewing our products and listening to Prosit sor credit Union
Member feedback to ensure we are providing quality, market-
leading insurance policies that reflect the needs of our members. Insurance Ltd

FUNERAL PLAN POLICIES AS AT 30 JUNE

6,000
5,000

17%

increase in funeral plan
policies

23

4,000

3,000

2,000 — ' ' ¢
2010 2011 2012

KIWISAVER SCHEME
TOTAL VALUE OF FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

$30
$20
$10

$0

increase in KiwiSaver
scheme members

Millions

Jun-10 Jun-11 Jun-12

10

submissions made
to government departments
on your behalf

47*

of carminder
policyholders have added
Roadside Assistance option




chairman’s report

OVERVIEW

This past year to 30 June 2012
has been particularly challenging
for everyone in the financial
services industry, with continuing
uncertainty on the far reaching
effects of the ongoing Euro crisis
and a noticeable ‘hunkering
down’ of the Kiwi consumer.

Credit unions have continued to work hard through these
challenges to serve the best interests of their members, despite
the increasing burden of regulatory compliance. The follow on
effect of the Global Financial Crisis has seen a natural tightening
of financial legislation worldwide, and a resulting increase in
compliance costs, time and effort.

Despite the economic and regulatory challenges, the NZACU
Group has continued to perform extremely well, with a group
profit for the year to 30 June 2012 of $1,509,000 compared
to the prior year profit of $881,000. This result is pleasing
especially given the extensive savings passed on to credit
unions since 1 July 2011.

| have no doubt this excellent performance is a direct result of
the strength of focus that our Strategic Plan has brought to the
NZACU Board, management and staff. Having a clear direction,
mandated and supported by our Member credit unions, has
helped in making the decisions and implementing the plans
necessary to achieve our goals.

Maintaining NZACU’s capital adequacy while returning value
to our Members is the first goal of the Strategic Plan and this
has continued in a very positive manner this year. As part of
returning value to members, the board had set a target to
achieve an annual dividend of BBMR plus 2% - 3%. The interim
dividend paid for the six months to 31 December 2012 was
BBMR + 3%, which is 5.77% for the period, or $395,091.
Following balance date, the board declared a final dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2012 of BBMR + 3%. This
is 5.69% for the period or $389,614. In addition, due to our
excellent financial performance, the Board has declared a
special dividend of $200,000 to Members.

A noteworthy feature of our results this year has been the
performance of our NZACU and Credit Union Insurance Ltd
insurance operations. More detail on this is given in the Report
of the Chief Executive.

Our ongoing capital adequacy stability and overall strategic
refocus in the past two years saw both NZACU and Credit
Union Insurance Ltd achieve a second successive Standard

& Poor’s credit rating improvement in December 2012 - an
outstanding result for all concerned, particularly given the
downgrades being experienced by most other financial services
providers.

In this UN International Year of Cooperatives, we have been
especially delighted that five mutual colleagues — Heretaunga
Building Society, Napier Building Society, Nelson Building
Society, NZ Police and Families Credit Union and Wairarapa
Building Society have joined the NZACU as Associate Members.
Their membership has further enhanced the strength of our

collective voice and we now represent 56% of the Non-bank Deposit
Takers sector. Welcome aboard! We trust that we will also add value
and networking opportunities to their businesses too.

REGULATORY & COMPLIANCE ISSUES

It's been over a year since the Financial Markets Authority began
regulating New Zealand’s financial services industry and credit unions
have been coming to grips with the implications of the Financial Advisor
regime.

The Association is continuing to put pressure on regulators around
the cost of compliance of the Non-Bank Deposit Takers regime and
the ludicrous nature of the ‘Category 1’ classification of credit union
Christmas Club account. Wheels move slowly in regulatory reform as
we know, but rest assured the team are exploring all avenues and will
continue to push for change in these areas. The Regulatory Reform
Bill recently passed into law following many years of lobbying by both
NZACU and Members is evidence that change can be made for the
benefit of the Movement.

A record number of submissions were made on behalf of Member
credit unions this year, including on the Credit Contracts and Consumer
Finance Amendment Bill, the Financial Markets Conduct Bill and the
Non-Bank Deposit Takers Bill. The feedback received from Members in
making these submissions has been invaluable, and it is only with your
input that your Association can represent credit unions’ interests to the
fullest.

Executive Management have continued to undertake numerous
meetings and direct communications with key influencers and ministers,
and recent comments from legislators have been very positive in terms
of both awareness and support for the issues being faced by the credit
union Movement.

LOOKING AHEAD

As the International Year of Cooperatives draws to a close, it is
opportune to reflect on the three words that will continue to drive
Member credit unions and the NZACU forward in the coming year:
Unity, Cooperation and Future.

Whilst we all have our own strategic plans as individual credit unions,
we all have a common goal of continuing to grow the Movement to help
as many New Zealanders as possible improve their financial situations.
To this end, the NZACU is dedicated to providing the best and most
cost effective products, services and support that you and your
members need - both today and into the future.

Once again, | would like to give my sincere thanks to the NZACU
management, staff and our Members for their support of the Board, as
well as my fellow Directors for their hard work and dedication during the
pasgt year.

Simon Scott
Chair
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chief executive’s report

Although it has been a tough
year for credit unions, through
the dedication of both boards
and staff, our Members have
continued to provide hard
working New Zealanders with
genuine, personal service

and support to reach their
financial goals. Not only have
credit unions ridden through
the Global Financial Crisis with their heads held high, but our
Members have survived the many storms that have followed,
and no doubt that will continue to appear on the horizon for
some time yet. Perhaps the most important part of any credit
union is its people - after all, they’re ultimately the ones who
helo members and credit unions continue to excel in this area.

The financial year began with a big shift for the NZACU -
literally, to our new premises in Teed Street, Newmarket. The
move went very smoothly and has made a very positive impact
on our team dynamics, not only due to a more open, modern
work space, but as we are all now on the same floor with a
common staffroom, it has given us far more opportunities to
interact with each other on a daily basis. The combined official
opening celebration and United Nations International Year of
Cooperatives launch was also a big success, with Members,
business partners and invited guests enjoying presentations
from MP’s on their party’s view of the Movement and its place
in the market.

At NZACU, we believe it's important to tell the credit union
and mutual building society story often and well — not just to
media, but to government and regulators. Building on our
representation to Government officials, we have also been
enhancing our relationship with key MP’s and Government
Ministers, and have had a number of fruitful meetings. We have
also been building relationships with key media to help raise
the profile of credit unions and mutual building societies, with
some excellent articles in nationwide publications, as well as
provincial newspapers. A noticeable result of this relationship
building is the media contacting us for comments on relevant
topics on a more regular basis.

REGULATORY REFORMS CONTINUE

A huge amount of work has gone on in the area of regulatory
reforms this year, and we have made a significant number of
submissions on your behalf. | have personally been involved in
a number of major presentations to select committees and this
has been invaluable in getting the message through to officials
that we are an important part of the banking landscape. The
old adage that the squeaky wheel gets the oll is starting to pay
off with many in government and associated agency circles
becoming more sympathetic to our cause.

The ever-growing burden of regulatory compliance is an
ongoing frustration and rest assured we are working harder

than ever to represent the interests of credit unions and mutual building
societies in our submissions to government departments.

The AML legislation, due to be enforced from 30 June 2013, is one
such law that has placed an increasingly time consuming layer of
compliance, and we looked extensively at the turnkey options available
in the market place for a collective AML transaction monitoring solution.
As was announced at the June 2012 Forum, the NZACU board has
elected to fund the Jade solution offered by the Wynyard Group, on
behalf of all credit unions, 1o ensure that every Member regardiess of
size can participate giving the entire movement, their membership and
the monitoring authorities, confidence that we will meet the exacting
standards imposed in the legislation.

POSITIVE PRODUCT PERFORMANCE

Despite an overall tightening of beits by most New Zealanders,

the number of transactions being made by members has actually
increased, with a record year for both ATM and FACTS transactions.
The introduction of the exciting new AccessDebit MasterCard® is a
welcome advancement and will allow members to shop on-line and
over the phone with ease, as well as utilise the new MasterCard®
PayPass™ ‘Tap & Go™’ technology. This state of the art ‘chip’ enabled
card will also position our members at the head of the queue when the
new ‘mobile wallet’ technology makes it to New Zealand. The new card
launch date is targeted for the end of September 2012.

Despite the challenges of a number of major operational and structural
changes in the past year, the staff and management of Credit Union
Insurance Limited have had a great year, with claims down and
profitability significantly up. The introduction of the Roadside Assistance
option has been well received by members, and further product
enhancements will continue in coming months, including a third party
only option which will open up a new market to credit unions who have
sought this lower cost option on behalf of their members.

NEW RELATIONSHIPS

Changes in legislation required us to engage a new KiwiSaver scheme
provider for our Members, and we found a positive philosophical fit with
kiwi-owned and operated Fisher Funds. The transfer of members from
Credit Union KiwiSaver to the Fisher Funds KiwiSaver scheme was a
major undertaking and was successfully completed in May this year.
Staff from participating credit unions have received extensive training
from Fisher Funds on the benefits of this valuable government and
employer-subsidised retirement savings scheme.

The NZ Bureau Ltd has been another major undertaking this year and
it was very rewarding to see it up and operational ahead of schedule
and budget - thanks to many hours of dedicated hard work (and late
nights!) by staff. The joint venture will provide IT infrastructure services
to NZACU and our joint venture partner Finzsoft Solutions Limited.
The initial goal of the joint venture has been to merge the production
and disaster recovery environments of both organisations. This was
achieved by balance date and the company is now in ‘business as
usual’ mode, having completed contractual arrangements.

MasterCard and the MasterCard brand mark are Registered Trademarks of MasterCard Internationat
Incorporated. PayPass and Tap & Go are Trademarks of MasterCard International Incorporated.
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chief executive’s report

WORKING TOGETHER

Our forums, summits and conferences continue to be
important opportunities to share ideas and network amongst
members and the turnouts in the past year have been
particularly pleasing considering the financial, staffing and time
restraints we are all operating under these days. We continue
to strive to provide speakers and topics that will add value

to all of our Members, and value the input and feedback we
receive on these avents.

Your feedback is also invaluable in understanding how we
are doing as your association, and the Member Survey is an
important way for us to gauge our performance against the
KPI's we all agreed to in the Strategic Plan. Whilst there is
always room for improvement, we were delighted 1o note that
in the Member Survey to June 2012, 100% of Members were
either ‘very satisfied’ or ‘satisfied’ with NZACU'’s progress
against the strategic plan. | would like to personally thank our
staff in achieving this positive feedback as it is a reflection of
their efforts and dedication to serving our Members.

FINANCIAL

The Chairman in his report has highlighted the NZACU’s strong
financial result and consequent lift in dividends, including the
declaration of a special dividend of $200,000. A significant
contributor to our financial performance has been the NZACU
and CUIL insurance operations. The total CUI rebate payable
to all credit unions is $1,418,704, compared to $938,894 for
the year ended 30 June 2012. This is an increase of 51%.
The increase is due to an improvement in the loss ratio on

all products compared to the prior year and a significant
reduction in claims management costs and overheads
following the restructure that occurred.

Credit Union Insurance Limited also had a very good financial
performance. The company’s contribution to Group profit of $428,751
compared to prior year loss of $167,742 reflects an improved loss ratio
and the integration of CUIL into the NZACU operations to generate
cost savings from consolidating duplicated services including IT,
management and claims.

NZACU TEAM

A considerable amount of work has been undertaken in the past year
to streamline our internal systems and processes, and the positive
Member feedback and excellent financial results have been a reflection
of this dedicated effort by all of the NZACU team. My genuine thanks
go to all staff and the board for their hard work and support in achieving
a very positive result for the year, particularly in such a challenging
financial environment. Thank you.

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

Looking to the future is what we must continue to do if we are to see
growth in our sector. All of the work we do at the Association is focused
on serving our members needs and looking for opportunities to help
you grow, and we always invite your suggestions and comments on
ways that we can continue to support you.

Today’s credit unions and mutual building societies are increasingly
complex entities; no two are exactly the same. We value your
differences, yet welcome your combined support in helping us all move
forward to become an even more relevant and powerful part of the
financiat services industry.

Henry Lyfich
CEO & Director
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board & governance

THE NEW ZEALAND ASSOCIATION OF CREDIT UNIONS HAS ADOPTED THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IN
NEW ZEALAND - PRINCIPLES AND GUIDELINES PUBLICATION ENDORSED BY THE FINANCIAL MARKETS
AUTHORITY TO REVIEW AND REPORT ON OUR GOVERNANCE PRACTICES. DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

ARE SET OUT ON PAGE ?? OF THIS REPORT.

At the 2012 AGM Graham Clouston, NZCU Baywide and
Simon Scott, First Credit Union were re-elected to the NZACU
Board. Immediately following the AGM, Simon Scott was
elected Chair and Malcolm Blair was elected as Vice Chair.
Bruce Ross and Malcolm Blair were elected Trustees and Rob
Nicholls was re-elected Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee.
Brian Hancock and Malcolm Blair were also re-elected as Audit
& Risk Committee members. Due to heavy work commitments,
Bruce Ross resigned from the Board from May 2012.

1. ENSURING SOLID FOUNDATIONS FOR
MANAGEMENT AND OVERSIGHT

The Association has procedures designed to:

¢ Enable the Board to provide strategic guidance and
effective oversight of management

¢ Clarify the respective roles and responsibilities of Board
members and senior executives in order to facilitate Board
and management accountability to both the Association
and its Member credit unions

* Ensure the balance of authority so that no single individual
has unfettered powers.

The Board has an obligation to protect and enhance the

value of the Association’s assets and act in its interests. It
exercises this obligation through the approval of appropriate
organisational strategy and processes, with particular regard to
investment portfolio composition and return expectations.

The Association achieves Board and management
accountability through written terms of reference (policies), and
a formal delegation of authority to the Chief Executive. The
Chief Executive is charged with the day-to-day leadership and
management of the Association.

The governance procedures require the Board to have up

to two independent directors to complement the elected
directors. The Board appointed Rob Nicholls as Independent
Director in November 2009 and Members agreed at the May
2011 forum not to appoint a second Independent Director.

2. STRUCTURING THE BOARD TO ADD VALUE

Directors believe that for the Board to be effective it needs to
facilitate the efficient discharge of the duties imposed by law
and to add value to the Association. To achieve this, the Board
is organised in such a way that it:

* Obtains a proper understanding of, and competence to
deal with, the current and emerging issues of the business

e Can effectively review and challenge the performance of
management and exercise independent judgment.

Board composition

The Association’s constitution (its Rules) provides for a Board of eight
being comprised of five Member elected directors, two directors
appointed by the Board and one executive director, the Chief Executive.
The directors serve a term of two years with the appointed directors
being limited to a maximum of two, two year terms.

Committees of the Board

The only current committees of the board are the Audit and Risk
Committee and Director Nomination Committee. From time to time the
Board may create ad hoc committees to examine specific issues on its
behalf.

Board process

Although the majority of directors are elected by Member credit unions
to bring special expertise or perspectives to Board deliberations,
decisions of the Board are made as a whole after taking each
perspective into account and in the best interests of the Association.

The Directors receive comprehensive information on the Association’s
operations before each meeting and have unrestricted access to any
other information or records. Senior management is available and
attend relevant sections of Board meetings to address queries and to
assist in developing the Board’s understanding of the issues facing the
Association and the performance of the business.

Director participation remains very high with all Directors being present
at the majority of meetings. In addition to regular Board meetings an
annual strategic planning process has taken place since 2011.

The Strategic Plan for 2012 to 2015 has been approved by Members
and Management report regularly to Members on progress toward
achievement of the KPls embedded in the plan.

3. PROMOTING ETHICAL AND RESPONSIBLE
DECISION MAKING

The Association has written procedures to clarify the standards

of ethical behaviour required of directors and management and
ensure observance through a Code of Ethics and a policy on dealing
appropriately with conflicts and/or interests.

The Association has an employee handbook which embodies our
values and supplements the code of conduct practices that are
incorporated into alt employees’ terms of employment. An Ethics
Committee can be formed when requested by the Board, or a Member
credit union, for the purposes of reviewing any complaint received in
accordance with the Code of Ethics.

4. SAFEGUARDING THE INTEGRITY OF FINANCIAL
REPORTING ’

While the ultimate responsibility to ensure the integrity of the
Association’s financial reporting rests with the Board, the Association
has in place a structure of review and authorisation designed to ensure
truthful and factual presentation of its financial position. This includes:

New Zealand Association of Credit Unions ANNUAL REPORT 2012 page 7



* An appropriately resourced Audit & Risk Committee operating under
a written charter

* Review and consideration by the Audit & Risk Committee of the
accounts and appropriate policies

® A process to oversee and ensure the independence and
competence of the Association’s external auditors

¢ Responsibility for appointment of the external auditors resides with
the Audit & Risk Committee subject to approval by the Board

e Establishment of an independent external party who conducts the
internal audit function with reporting responsibility to the Audit &
Risk Committee

e The Audit & Risk Committee meet on a regular basis throughout the
year and report directly to the Board.

5. MAKING TIMELY AND BALANCED DISCLOSURE

Accountability for compliance with disclosure obligations is with the
Association’s Secretary. The Secretary’s position has been delegated by
the Board to the Chief Executive. Significant announcements including
the interim half year and final full year results and dividend, the accounts
for those periods, and any advice on a change of earnings forecast
requires the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer to seek prior
approval from the Audit & Risk Committee and the Board.

6. RESPECTING THE RIGHT OF MEMBERS

The Association seeks to ensure that its Members understand its

activities by:

* Communicating regularly and effectively with them

* Giving Members ready access to balanced and clear information
about the Association and any key organisational proposals

e Making it easy for Member credit unions to participate in general
meetings and forums.

To assist with this, an Association website intranet is maintained with
relevant information including copies of presentations, reports and
media or Member communigué releases. The annual report is available
in electronic format from the Association.

7. RECOGNISING AND MANAGING RISK

The Association has a formalised system for identifying, overseeing,
managing and controlling risk. The Board is ultimately responsible

for the oversight of risk management and setting the Association’s

risk appetite and tolerances. The Audit & Risk Committee assists the
Board in discharging its responsibilities with regards the oversight of
risk management. The processes involved require the maintenance of

a governance level Risk Management Framework and a Risk Register
that identifies key operational risks facing the business and the status of
various initiatives employed to reduce them.

The Audit & Risk Committee is responsible for designing an internal
audit programme addressing the adequacy of internal controls related
to the Association’s credit, liquidity, market, operational and insurance
risks. The committee is also responsible for overseeing the audit
programme designed to test the adequacy of internal controls related
to the Information Services delivered by the Association including the
security of the FACTS system.

8. ENCOURAGING ENHANCED PERFORMANCE

Directors and senior executives need to be equipped with

the appropriate knowledge and information to discharge their
responsibilities effectively and be assured that individual and collective
performance is regularly and fairly reviewed.

Board policy provides financial resource for directors’ ongoing
training and education with a formal appraisal process that includes
the chairman. On appointment directors receive an education and
development allowance for their two year term. This is specifically for
professional development, education and training that will be of direct
benefit to their role as an Association director. As part of the annual
review of its governance processes, the Board via a sub-committee,
evaluates annually the performance of the Chief Executive.

The evaluation is based on criteria that include the performance of the
business and the accomplishment of key strategic objectives and other
non guantitative objectives established at the beginning of each year.

In addition to these annual performance reviews, the significant
policy issues, annual budget and capital expenditure decisions of
management are put through a formal Board review process.

9. REMUNERATING FAIRLY AND RESPONSIBLY
Remuneration philosophy

The Association’s remuneration strategy aims to attract, retain and
motivate high calibre employees at all levels of the organisation,

and so drive performance and sustained growth of Member value.
Underpinning this strategy is a philosophy that all employees should be
appropriately and competitively rewarded. Total remuneration for senior
executives comprises a base salary including the value of any benefits
and may include a short term variable incentive in the form of an annual
performance related payment that requires achievement of a mix of
financial and business targets.

Non-executive directors’ remuneration

The fees paid to non-executive directors for services in their capacity as
directors of the Association during the year ended 30 June 2012 are as
per the table on page 55. The Association’s policy is to align directors’
remuneration to the market measured against organisations of similar
total asset value and similar annual revenues with a 20% discount to
market applied. Directors’ fees are normally reviewed annually by a
Director Remuneration Committee and any changes recommendesd

to Members biennially, unless a significant market movement has
occurred. The last review was in 2010 and at that AGM the directors’
fees payable in any one year was increased to $212,500.

In acknowledgement of the varying workloads of the Board’s Audit

& Risk Commiittee $5,000 from the director fee pool is set aside for

the Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee and additional meeting fee
expenses of $500 for a full day meeting or $250 per teleconference or
half day meeting is paid to members of the Audit & Risk Committee.
These are only paid if the meetings occur on a non-board meeting date.

Travel allowance

The directors receive reimbursement for their travel, accommodation
and out of pocket expenses whilst attending Board meetings. Apart
from travel and costs to attend the Association’s Annual General
Meeting and forum, the Association does not pay for accompanying
partners. When directors travel overseas to international meetings and
conferences, their travel, registration and accommodation expenses
are paid. Reasonable costs (including travel, accommodation and
registration), are also paid for a partner of an official representative of
the Association attending such international meetings.

Directors’ development allowance

As the role and requirements of a director of the Association is
significantly different from that of a director of a credit union or
commercial entity, this allowance is not to enhance a director’s position
or experience in relation to any credit union, affiiated organisations or
commercial entities.
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Directors’ insurance protection

The Association maintains appropriate Accidental Death and Disability
cover as well as Directors’ Liability Insurance for its directors. The
Accidental Death and Disability cover for directors and the Chief
Executive provides for full proceeds being paid to the insured director
or their estate, in the event of a claim being made.

The Directors’ Liability Insurance ensures that the directors will suffer no
financial loss as a result of actions taken by them as directors, provided
that they operate with due diligence and within the law.

Executive director’s remuneration

In accordance with the Association’s Rules, the Chief Executive is
also a director, ex officio of the Association. Executive directors do not
receive any further remuneration in their capacity as a director of the
Association or its subsidiaries.

10. RECOGNISING THE LEGITIMATE INTEREST OF
STAKEHOLDERS

The Association recognises that it has a number of legal and other
obligations to non-member stakeholders such as employees, regulatory
authorities, suppliers and the community as a whole. Its commitment to
these obligations is captured in our Code of Ethics and various policies
and procedures for ethical conduct, the responsibility to employees and
relationships with suppliers and customers. These are incorporated into
the employment terms of all employees.
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Holding securities

No director or executive of the Association holds any notes or any
personal beneficial interest in the Association.

Other interests

No written or verbal contracts or arrangements involving directors’
interests whether direct or indirect, were entered into during the year
ended 30 June 2012 or existed at that date.

Compliance with corporate governance best practice

The Association seeks to meet the principles of best practice for
New Zealand directors as promulgated by the Four Pillars of Effective
Board Governance as published by the Institute of Directors in

New Zealand Inc.




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE DIRECTORS ARE PLEASED TO PRESENT THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE NEW ZEALAND ASSOCIATION OF CREDIT UNIONS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2012.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

by /]

Simon Scott Henry Lynch
Chairman CEO & Director
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of New Zealand Association of Credit Unions

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of New Zealand Association of Credit Unions (the “Association”) on pages 12 to
54, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 30 June 2012, the statements of comprehensive income, the
statements of changes in equity and the statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial
statements that include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for both the
Association and the Group. The Group comprises the Association and the entities it controlled at 30 June 2012 or from time
to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practice in New Zealand and that give a true and fair view of the matters to which they relate and for such
internal controls as the Directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) and International Standards on Auditing. These
standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider the internal controls relevant to the Association and the Group’s preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the matters to which they relate, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association and the Group’s
internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
We have no relationship with, or interests in, New Zealand Association of Credit Unions or any of its subsidiaries other than

in our capacities as auditors, tax advisors and providers of other assurance services. These services have not impaired our
independence as auditors of the Association and the Group.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 12 to 54:
@) comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and
(ii) comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and
(iii) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Association and the Group as at year end date, and

their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We also report in accordance with Sections 16(1)(d) and 16(1)(e) of the Financial Reporting Act 1993. In relation to our audit
of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012:
i) we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and
(ii) in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Association as far as appears from an
examination of those records.

Restriction on Distribution or Use

This report is made solely to the Association’s members. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Association’s members those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Association and
the Association’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

ol o (aapars

Chartered Accountants Auckland
30 August 2012

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 188 Quay Street, Private Bag 92162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
T: +64 (9) 355 8000, F: +64 (9) 355 8001, www.pwc.com/nz
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2012

ASSOCIATION

GROUP

2011 2012 2011

2012

NOTE

O

s gy

Interest Revenue

Interest Expense

e e e

NET INTEREST REVENUE
Banking Services Revenue

Insurance Premium Revenue

Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUE NET OF INTEREST EXPENSE

Employee Costs

G et ahe L
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Insurance Claims and Rebates

Transaction Costs
Operating Expenses

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
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)

NET PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

NET PROFIT BEFORE IMPAIRMENT
Taxation Expense

Impairment Recoveries/(Expenses

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Members’ Funds)

For the year ended 30 June 2012

GROUP
Base
Capital Accumulated
Notes Reserves Losses Total
$000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2010

Notes issued for Capitalisation of Dividends and Rebates
Base Capital Notes Dividends paid

Transfer to/(from) Stabilisation Fund Reserve

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Balance at 30 June 2011

Balance at 1 July 2011
Base Capital Notes Dividends paid
Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Balance at 30 June 2012
ASSOCIATION
Base
Capital Accumulated
Notes Reserves Losses Total
$000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2010

Notes issued for Capitalisation of Dividends and Rebates
Base Capital Notes Dividends paid

Transfer to/(from) Stabilisation Fund Reserve

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Balance at 30 June 2011

Balance at 1 July 2011
Base Capital Notes Dividends paid
Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Balance at 30 June 2012

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 August 2012 and were signed for on its behalf.

Henry Lynch
CEO & Director

Simon Scott

Chairman
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Statements of Cash Flow
For the year ended 30 June 2012

GROUP ASSOCIATION
NOTE 2012 2011 2012 2011

Cash Flows from operating activities

Cash was provided from

Membership Contributions Received

Insurance Premiums Received

Other Receipts from Customers

Loan Repayments from Customers

Investment Interest Received

Motor Vehicle Claims Recoveries

Credit Union Foundation Grants and Donations

Cash was applied to

Payments to Suppliers and Employees
Insurance Claims and Rebates Paid
Loan Advances to Customers

Interest Paid

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 34
Cash Flows from investing activities

Cash was provided from

Sale of Fixed Assets and Intangibles

Proceeds from sales and maturities of Investment Securities

Cash was applied to

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Purchase of Intangible Assets

Purchase of Investment Securities
Investment in Subsidiary

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash Flows from financing activities

Cash was provided from

Net increase/(decrease) in Deposits

Cash was applied to
Base Capital Note Dividend Paid

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 13

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2012

1. Summary of Accounting Policies
REPORTING ENTITY

The Association is an association of Credit Unions registered under

the Friendly Societies and Credit Unions Act 1982, comprising two
Trusts (“Divisions”) for a Member Services Division and a Business
Services Division. The Divisions are established pursuant to the Rules
of Association, which were approved by its members on 25 September
1994 and were first registered with the Registrar of Friendly Societies
and Credit Unions on 10 November 1994,

The Association and its wholly owned subsidiary, Credit Union
Insurance Limited, are, with effect from 1 July 2012, an issuer under the
Financial Reporting Act 1993 under the terms of the provisional licence
issued by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand under the Insurance
(Prudential Supervision) Act 2010. The Financial Statements have

been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted
Accounting Practise (“NZ GAAP”) and comply with the Friendly
Societies and Credit Unions Act 1992.

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
NZ GAAP which complies with New Zealand equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards (“NZ IFRS”) and other applicable
Financial Reporting Standards for profit-orientated entities for the
benefit of their members. These financial statements also comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

New Zealand Association of Credit Unions is domiciled in New Zealand
and principal activities are to provide banking and insurance services for
the credit unions.

GENERAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical
cost, except for the revaluation of certain financial instruments. Cost is
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for the
assets.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which
ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts
of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the
underlying transactions or other events are reported.

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the function currency). The financial statements are
presented in New Zealand Dollars, which is the Group’s functional and
presentation currency. All values have been rounded off to the nearest
1,000 dollars ($) unless otherwise stated.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities have been translated
into the functional currency at the rate of foreign exchange ruling

as at balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in a foreign
currency are converted to New Zealand dollars at the exchange rates
in effect at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange differences
relating to monetary items and gains and losses arising from foreign
exchange dealings by the Group are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

In the application of NZ IFRS management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying vaiues of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that management believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the

basis of making the judgements. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Significant judgements, estimates and assumptions made by
management in the preparation of these financial statements are
outlined below:

¢ Allowance for Impairment Loss

Where Loans Receivable are outstanding beyond the normal
contractual terms, or where uncertainty exists over the recoverability

of loans receivable, the likelihood of the recovery of these assets is
assessed by management. The specific impairment loss is estimated
with reference to the probability of recovery, the cost of possible '
enforcement through security and related costs and sale proceeds. Any
collective provision is estimated using historical and industry trends.

¢ Estimation of Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The determination of fair values of financial instruments is based on
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations for financial instruments
fraded in active markets, or by using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include discounted cash flow analysis and comparison to
similar financial instruments for which a market observable price exists.

To the extent possible, models use only observable data. Inputs to
valuation models such as credit rigk, volatilities and correlations require
management to make judgements and estimates. Changes in the
assumptions used in these models and projections of future cash flows
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

* Estimation of Insurance Contract Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities for insurance contracts are computed
using statistical or mathematical methods. The computations are made
by suitably qualified personnel on the basis of recognised actuarial
methods, with due regard to relevant actuarial principles.

The methodology takes into account the risks and uncertainties of the
particular classes of insurance business written.

The key factors that affect the estimation of these liabilities and related
assets are:

e discontinuance experience, which affects the Group’s ability to
recover the cost of acquiring new business over the lives of the
contracts

¢ the cost of providing benefits and administering these insurance
contracts

e the discount rate applied to calculate the present value of future
benefits.

In addition, factors such as regulation, inflation, interest rates, taxes,
investment market conditions and general economic conditions affect
the level of these liabilities.

Other judgements made by management in the application of NZ IFRS
that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates
with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next year are
disclosed, where applicable, in the relevant notes to the financial
statements.
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PARTICULAR ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The particular accounting policies used in the preparation of the
financial statements are as follows:

a. Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Group and that revenue can be reliably
measured. The principal sources of revenue are interest revenue,
insurance premiums, transaction and other fees.

Interest Revenue and Expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest
revenue or expense is recorded at the effective interest rate, which

is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset

or financial liability. The application of the method has the effect of
recognising revenue and expense evenly in proportion to the amount
outstanding over the expected life of the financial asset or liability.

The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are
an integral part of the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses.
The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original
effective interest rate and the change in carrying amount is recorded as
interest revenue or expense.

Other than for non accrual items, once the recorded value of the
financial asset or group of similar financial assets has been reduced
due to an impairment loss, interest revenue continues to be recognised
using the original effective interest rate applied to the new carrying
amount.

The Group recognises interest revenue and lending fees on an accrual
basis when the services are rendered using the effective interest rate
method.

Lending Fees

The calculation of the life of Loan Receivables has been based on
contractual data. The actual life of Loan Receivables is used to
apportion loan origination and associated direct costs on a straight line
basis.

Banking Services Transaction and Other Fees

Commissions or fees which relate to specific transactions or events are
recognised in profit or loss on the Statement of Comprehensive Income
when the service is provided to the member. When commissions and
fees are charged for services provided over a period, they are taken to
income on an accruals basis as the service is provided.

Insurance Premiums

Premium revenue is recognised from the attachment date as soon as
there is a basis on which it can reliably be estimated. Premium revenue
is recognised in profit or loss on the Statement of Comprehensive
Income over the period of the contract in accordance with the pattern
of incidence of risk expected under the insurance contract. Premium
revenue excludes fire service and earthquake levies collected on behalf
of statutory bodies. The unearned portion of premium is recognised as
an unearned premium liability on the Statement of Financial Position.

Reinsurance Expense

Premium ceded to reinsurers is recognised as an expense that is
evenly spread from the date of attachment of the risk to the end of the
period of the reinsurance contract over the period of indemnity of the
reinsurance contract.

Expense Recognition

All expenses are recognised in profit or loss on the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on an accruals basis.

b. Valuation of Assets and Liabilities
Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments are transacted on a commercial basis to derive an
interest yield/cost with the terms and conditions having due regard to
the nature of the transaction and the risks involved.

Financial Assets are classified in one of the following categories at initial
recognition:

¢ Loans and receivables

¢ Fair value through profit or loss
® Held to maturity

* Available-for-sale

Certain categories of these require measurement at fair value. Where
quoted market prices do not exist, fair values are estimated using
discounted cash flow models, using methods and assumptions that are
based on market conditions and risks existing at balance date. Financial
instruments are recognised and accounted for on a settlement date
basis.

Loans and Receivables

Assets in this category are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Financial assets classified as loans and
receivables include:

e Cash and Cash Equivalents
e Accounts Receivable
* [oans Receivable

* Investments (other than investments in New Zealand Government
Stock).

Loans Receivable cover all forms of lending to customers, and include
residential lending, commercial lending and vendor finance. They

are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when cash is
advanced to the customer.

Loans Receivable are reported net of provisions for impairment to reflect
the estimated recoverable amounts.

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial assets backing insurance liabilities are measured at fair value
with movements recognised in profit or loss on the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Interest is recognised on an amortised cost
basis in profit or loss on the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Fair value movements have been calculated taking this into account.
Financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss includes
investment in New Zealand Government Stock.

Investments in New Zealand Government Stock are measured at fair
value with movements recognised in profit or loss on the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The fair value of Government Stock and other
bonds is based on quoted market prices.

Held to Maturity Investments

Financial Assets in this category are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. There are currently no financial assets in
this category.

Available-For-Sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. The fair
value of the assets is based on quoted market prices and fair value
movements are recognised directly in equity. Interest is recognised

on an amortised cost basis in profit or loss on the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

There are currently no financial assets in this category.

¢. Financial Liabilities

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either liabilities or Members
Funds in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement

Liabilities are recorded initially at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, liabilities are measured at amortised
cost with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the
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redemption value being recognised in profit or loss on the Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the period of borrowing using the effective
interest rate method. Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss on the
Statement of Comprehensive Income using the effective interest method.

d. Deposits Received

Deposits received cover all forms of deposits and include transactional
and savings accounts, and term deposits.

(i) Offsetting Financial Instruments

The Group offsets financial assets and financial liabilities and reports
the net balance in the Statement of Financial Position where there
is a legally enforceable right to set-off and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(ii) Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are contracts whose value is derived
from changes in one or more underlying financial instruments or
indices. The Association enters into interest rate swaps to assist
Member credit unions with interest rate risk management. The
Group does not engage in trading derivatives for speculative
purposes. The net fair value of interest rate swaps receivable from
counterparties is disclosed as Derivative Financial Assets. The

net fair value of interest rate swaps payable to counterparties is
disclosed as Derivative Financial Liabilities.

Interest rate swaps are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to their fair value at each reporting date. The
movement in the fair value of interest rate swaps is recognised

in profit or loss on the Statement of Comprehensive Income
immediately.

The Group does not undertake any form of hedge accounting.

e. Asset Quality
Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance date to determine whether there is any objective evidence

of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated and provision is made for the difference between
the carrying amount and the recoverable amount.

(i) Loans Receivable

Specific provisions are made for loans receivable which are
considered doubtful and are presented net of the specific
provisions. Specific allowances are made against the carrying
amount of loans receivable that are identified as being impaired
based on regular reviews of outstanding balances, to reduce these
loans receivable to their recoverable amounts.

Collective allowances are maintained to reduce the carrying
amount of portfolios of similar loans receivable to their estimated
recoverable amounts at balance date. These allowances relate to
incurred losses not yet specifically identified in the portfolio. The
expected future cash flows for the portfolios of similar assets are
estimated based on previous experience and considering the credit
rating of the underlying customers and late payments of interest
and penalties.

Increases in the specific and collective allowances are recognised
in the profit or loss on the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
When a loan is known to be uncollectible, all the necessary legal
procedures have been completed, and the final loss has been
determined, the loan is written off directly to profit or loss on the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(i) Impaired Loans Receivable

Impaired Loans Receivable consist of non-accrual items, past
due assets, assets acquired through enforcement of security and
restructured items: '

* Non-accrual items, which are defined as items in respect of

which revenue may no longer be accrued ahead of its receipt
because reasonable doubt exists as to the collectability

of principal and interest. They include exposures where
contractual payments are 90 or more consecutive days in
arrears and where security is insufficient to ensure payment.

¢ Past-due assets, which are assets where the counterparty has
failed to make a payment when contractually due.

e 90 day past-due assets, which are any assets that have
not been operated by the counterparty within its key terms
for at least 90 days and which are not restructured assets,
other impaired assets, or financial assets acquired through
enforcement of security.

¢ Financial assets acquired through enforcement of security,
which are assets acquired through the enforcement of security
or where the Group has assumed ownership of an asset in
settlerment of all or part of a debt.

¢ Restructured items, which are defined as items in which the
original contractual terms have been formally modified to provide
for concessions of interest or principal for reasons related to
the financial difficulties of the member, the revised terms of the
facility are not comparable with the terms of new facilities with
comparable risks and the vield on the asset following restructure
is equal to or greater than the Group's average cost of funds or a
loss is not otherwise expected to be incurred.

(iii) Impairment of Assets as Amortised Costs

An assessment is made at each balance date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of assets is impaired includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the directors about the following loss events:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor

¢ abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments

* a2 concession granted to the borrower that the lender would not
otherwise consider for economic or legal reasons

¢ relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter Registered
Bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

* observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the
decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
assets in the group; including adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the group.

Firstly an assessment is made whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, the assets are included in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on ioans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at amortised cost
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has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset'’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. f a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, impairment may be
measured on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may

result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling collateral,
whether or not foreclosure is probable. For the purposes of a collective
evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of
similar credit risk characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading
process that considers collateral type, past-due status and other
relevant factors). Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of
future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the
debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets and historical loss experience for assets with
similar credit ¢characteristics.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in related
observable data from period to period (for example, changes in
payment status or other factors indicative of changes in probability

of losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Such loans are written off after all the
necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the
loss has been determined.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtors
credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed

by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(iv) Impairment of Assets measured at fair value
The Group assess at each balance date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. Any-impairment of financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss will be included as part of the fair value
movement for those assets, reflected directly in profit or loss on the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

f. De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is de-recognised when:

¢ The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset and either:

— has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assets

— has neither transferred nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assets.
* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.
* The Group retains the right to receive cash flow from the assets, but
has assurmed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay
to a third party under “pass through” arrangement.

When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an
asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Groups continuing involvement in the
asset.

g. Investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is recognised at the lower of cost or
recoverable value. Any impairment is recognised in profit or loss on the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

h. Consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Susidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the
voting rights.

The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether

the Group controls another entity. The Group also assesses existence
of control where it does not have more than 50% of the voting power
but is able to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of
de-facto control. De-facto control may arise in circumstances where the
size of the Group’s voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of other shareholders give the Group the power to govern the
financial and operating policies.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of

a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially

at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises

any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition- by-
acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with NZ IAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income.

Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subseqguent settiement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration is lower than the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and
losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised

in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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(i) Joint Arrangements

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has
joint control, established by contractual agreement and requiring
unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions.

Jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the Group using the
equity method {equity accounted investees) and are recognised initially
at cost. The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s
share of the income and expenses and equity movements of equity
accounted investees, from the date that significant influence or joint
control commences until the date that significant influence or joint
control ceases. Dividends received from jointly controlled entities

are recorded in profit or loss on the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its Joint Venture are recognised
in the Group's financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the Joint Venture.

i. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits.
j- Accounts Receivables

Other receivables are initially recognised at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Appropriate allowance is estimated for irecoverable amounts which are
recognised in profit or loss on the Statement of Comprehensive Income
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

k. Deferred Commission Costs

Acquisition costs incurred in obtaining insurance contracts are deferred
and recognised as assets where they can be reliably measured and
where it is probable that they will give rise to premium revenue that will
be recognised in subsequent reporting periods. Deferred acquisition
costs are amortised systematically in accordance with the expected
pattern of the incidence of risk under the insurance contracts to which
they relate. This pattern of amortisation corresponds to the earning
pattern of the corresponding premium revenue.

l. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined on a first in,
first out basis, and net realisable value. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to be incurred in
marketing, selling and distribution.

m. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

All Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated on a straight line basis
at rates which will write off their cost less estimated residual value over
their expected useful lives. Depreciation rates are as follows:

Computer Equipment 40%

Office Furniture & Equipment,
Leasehold Improvement Costs
and Motor Vehicles

10 - 36%

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each balance date.

Property, Plant & Equipment is reviewed for impairment at least annually
and whenever events indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

n. Finite Life Intangible Assets
Finite Life Intangible Assets comprise Computer Software.

Computer Software is capitalised on the basis of costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their expected lives on a straight line basis of 40%
amortisation.

o. Taxation

The Association has not provided for income tax on the basis it is
exempt for tax under Section CW44 (a) of the iIncome Tax Act 2007.
However other Group entities are subject to taxation.

Income tax on the net profit for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

(i} Current Tax

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income
taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable profit or tax
loss for the period. It is calculated using tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by reporting
date. Current tax for current and prior periods is recognised as a
liability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable). Tax
assets and liabilities are offset only when the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and intends to
settle on a net basis.

(i) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of
temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax base of those items.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts will be
available against which deductible temporary differences or unused
tax losses and tax offsets can be utilised.

However, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary differences giving rise to them arise from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities (other than as a result of a
business combination) which affects neither taxable income nor
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probabie that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with these investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates

that are expected to apply to the period(s} when the asset and
liability giving rise to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

(iii) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of
GST except:

¢ When the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is
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not recoverable from Inland Revenue in which case the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the assets or
as part of the expense item as applicable.

* Accounts Receivables and Accounts Payable, which are stated
with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is included as part of accounts receivable or
accounts payable in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows, with the exception of depaosit cash flows, are
included in the Statements of Cash Flow on a gross basis.

The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and
financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is included as an operating activity.

p. Insurance Liabilities

The Association’s policy liabilities have been determined in accordance
with Professional Standard No. 3 of the New Zealand Society of
Actuaries. The policy liabilities of Credit Union Insurance Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group, have been determined in accordance with
Professional Standard No. 4 of the New Zealand Society of Actuaries.

Premium that has not been recognised in profit or loss on the
Statement of Comprehensive Income is unearned premium and is
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as an unearned
premium fiability.

The adequacy of the unearned premium liability is assessed by
considering current estimates of the present value of the expected
future cash flows and a margin for risk relating to future claims arising
from motor vehicle insurance contracts. In the event of a deficit

the entire deficit is recognised in profit or loss on the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Life Insurance Liabilities are recorded as the undiscounted accumulated
benefits to policyholders except where the outcome is materially
different from the net present value of future payments to policyholders.

Motor Vehicle claims liability is measured as the central estimate of the
present value of the expected future payment for claims incurred with
an additional risk margin to allow for the inherent uncertainty in the
central estimate.

Life Insurance claims liability and Motor Vehicle insurance claims liability
are not discounted due to the short term nature of these claims. Open
disability claims are discounted at an assessed risk free rate as the
liability may extend for the duration of the underlying loan.

g. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation, the
future sacrifice of benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision
can be measured reliably.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the balance date. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a pre tax rate that reflects the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provisions resulting from the passage of time is recognised as a finance
cost.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision
are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

r. Leases

Leases are classified as finance lsases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lesses. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease rentals/expenses are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased assets are derived.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the Statement of Financial Position as
a finance lease obligation.

L ease payments are apportioned between finance charges and the
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining liability. Finance charges are charged directly
against income. Finance lease assets are amortised on a straight

line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term
whichever is shorter.

Present obligations arising under onerous leases are recognised and
measured as provisions. An onerous lease is considered to exist where
the Group has a coniract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it.

s. Employee Entitlements

Provision is made for entitlements accruing to employees in respect

of salaries and wages, annual leave, long service leave and sick leave
when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable
of being measured reliably.

Provisions made in respect of employee entitlements expected to be
settled within 12 months, are-measured at their nominal values using
the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Provisions made in respect of employee entitlements which are not
expected to be settied within 12 months are measured as the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to reporting date.

t. Other Liabilities

Other liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes obliged
to make future payments resulting from the purchase of goods and
services.

Other liabilities are measured at amortised cost. The amounts are
unsecured.

u. Statements of Cash Flow

The Statement of Cash Flows is prepared exclusive of GST. The
following are definitions of the terms used in the Statement of Cash
Flows:

e Cash and Cash Equivalents are considered to be cash on hand and
call deposits

* Investing activities are those relating to the acquisition, holding
and disposal of property, plant and equipment and investments,
Investments can include movements in related party balances
and securities not falling within the definition of cash and cash
equivalents

e Financing activities are those activities which result in changes in
the size, composition and the capital structure of the Group. This
includes both equity and debt not falling within the definition of cash
and cash equivalents

e Operating activities include all transactions and other events that
are not investing or financing activities.

v. Segment Reporting

NZ IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis

of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly

reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate
resources to the segment and to assess its performance.

The Group’s primary reporting format is business segments. The Group
operates solely within New Zealand and does not recognise separate
geographical segments.

w. Comparative Financial Statements

All'accounting policies, except for those affected by the adoption of
new standards, have been applied on bases consistent with prior years.
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x. Accounting Standards adopted during the year

Revised NZ IFRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (effective
1 July 2012) In June 2011, the IASB made an amendment to 1AS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements. The ASRB is expected to make
equivalent changes to NZ IFRS 1 shortly. The amendment requires
entities to separate items presented in other comprehensive income
into two groups, based on whether they may be recycled to profit or
loss in the future. It has not affected the measurement of any of the
items recognised in the balance sheet or the profit or loss in the current
period.

NZ IFRS 7 Disclosures on Transfers of Financial Assets
(Amendment to NZ IFRS 7) (effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2011)

In November 2010, the IASB made amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures which introduce additional disclosures in
respect of risk exposures arising from transferred financial assets. The
amendments will affect particularly entities that sell, factor, securitise,
lend or otherwise transfer financial assets to other parties. They had no
impact on the Group’s disclosures.

NZ IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (cffective 1 January 2013) NZ IFRS
11 introduces a principles based approach to accounting for joint
arrangements. The focus is no longer on the legal structure of joint
arrangements, but rather on how rights and obligations are shared by
the parties to the joint arrangement. Based on the assessment of rights
and obligations, a joint arrangement will be classified as either a joint
operation or joint venture. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, and the choice to proportionately consolidate will no
longer be permitted. Parties to a joint operation will account their share
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities in much the same way

as under the previous standard. NZ [FRS 11 also provides guidance
for parties that participate in joint arrangements but do not share joint
control. On 31 March 2012, the Association invested in a joint operation
and this standard was early adopted.

NZ IFRS 24 Related Party Disclosures

In December 2009 the IASB issued a revised |IAS 24 Related Party
Disclosures. It is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2011 and must be applied retrospectively. The amendment
clarifies and simpilifies the definition of a related party and removes

the reguirement for government-related entities to disclose details of
all transactions with the government and other government-related
entities. The Group will apply the amended standard from 1 July 2011.
It is not expected to have any effect on the Group's or the parent
entities related party disclosures.

y. New accounting standards and interpretations issued not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group

The following standards and amendments to existing standards have
been published and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2011 or later periods, but the Group has
not early adopted them.

N2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015)

NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification,
measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. The standard is not applicable until 1 January 2015 but

is available for early adoption. NZ IFRS 9 replaces the multiple
classification and measurement models in NZ IFRS 39 with a single
model that has only two classification categories: amortised cost and
fair value. The Group is yet to assess the full impact of NZ IFRS 9.

NZ IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, NZ IFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in other Entities and revised NZ IFRS 27
Separate Financial Statements and NZ IFRS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures (effective 1 January 2013)

In May 2011, the IASB issued a suite of four new and amended
standards which address the accounting for consolidated financial
statements and associated disclosures.

NZ IFRS 10 replaces all of the guidance on control and consolidation
in NZ IFRS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements, and
NZ SIC-12 Consolidation — special purpose entities. The core principie
that a consolidated entity presents a parent and its subsidiaries as

if they are a single economic entity remains unchanged, as do the
mechanics of consolidation. However the standard introduces a single
definition of control that applies to all entities. It focuses on the need
to have both power and rights or exposure to variable returns before
control is present. Power is the current ability to direct the activities
that significantly influence returns. Returns must vary and can be
positive, negative or both. There is also new guidance on participating
and protective rights and on agent/principal relationships. The Group
does not expect the new standard to have a significant impact on its
composition.

NZ IFRS 12 sets out the required disclosures for entities reporting
under the two new standards, IFRS 10 and IFRS 11, and replaces the
disclosure requirements currently found in IAS 28. Application of this
standard by the Group will not affect any of the amounts recognised
in the financial statements, but will impact the type of information
disclosed in relation to the Group’s investments.

NZ IFRS 27 is renamed Separate Financial Statements and is now a
standard dealing solely with separate financial statements. Application
of this standard by the Group will not affect any of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

Armendments to NZ IFRS 28 provide clarification that an entity
continues to apply the equity method and does not re-measure its
retained interest as part of ownership changes where a joint venture
becomes an associate, and vice versa. The amendments also introduce
a “partial disposal” concept. Application of this standard is not expected
to have any impact on the financial statements.

The Group does not expect to adopt the new standards before their
operative date. They would therefore be first applied in the financial
statements for the annual reporting ending 30 June 2014.

NZ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (cffective 1 January 2013)
NZ IFRS 13 was released in May 2011. NZ IFRS 13 explains how to
measure fair value and aims to enhance fair value disclosures. The
Group has yet to determine which, if any, of its current measurement
techniques will have to change as a result of the new guidance. It is
therefore not possible to state the impact, if any, of the new rules on
any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements. However,
application of the new standard will impact the type of information
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Group does
not intend to adopt the new standard before its operative date, which
means that it would be first applied in the annual reporting period
ending 30 June 2014.

Revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits (cffective 1 January 2013)

In June 2011, the IASB released a revised standard on accounting

for employee benefits. An equivalent revised NZ IFRS 19 Employee
Benefits is expected to be issued shortly. The revised standard requires
the recognition of all re-measurements of defined benefit liabilities/
assets immediately in other comprehensive income (removal of the so-
called ‘corridor’ method) and the calculation of a net interest expense
or income by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. This replaces the expected return on plan assets that
is currently included in profit or loss. The standard also introduces a
number of additional disclosures for defined benefit liabilities/assets and
could affect the timing of the recognition of termination benefits. The
amendments will have to be implemented retrospectively.
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' NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2012

2. Interest Revenue
GROUP ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 $000
Government and Other Bond Interest
Bank, Money Market Securities, Local Authority
and Floating Rate Note Interest
Gains on Interest Rate Swaps
Loan Interest
Other Interest
TOTAL INTEREST REVENUE
3. Interest Expense
GROUP ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 $000
Interest on Deposits
Bank Fees and Charges
Other Interest
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE
4. Other Revenue
GROUP ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 $000
Membership Contributions
Other Revenue
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
5. Employee Costs
GROUP ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 $000
Salaries and Wages
Other Staff Costs
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2012

Operating Expenses

6.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2012

7. Insurance Products

Included in the income and expenditure for the Association and the Group are the following underwriting results for the Association and for Credit

Union Insurance Limited.

GROUP ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011

Underwriting Results

$000 $000 $000 $000

Life Insurance

Gross Earned Premium
Net Earned Premium
Gross Claims
Reinsurance Share
Net Claims
Commission
Underwriting Result
Credit Union Rebates

Other Association Insurance

Gross Earned Premium
Net Earned Premium
Gross Claims
Reinsurance Share
Net Claims
Commission
Underwriting Result
Credit Union Rebates

Motor Vehicle Insurance

Gross Earned Premium
Reinsurance Premiums
Net Earned Premium
Gross Claims
Reinsurance Share
Net Claims
Commission
Underwriting Result

Total Insurance
Net Earned Premium

Net Claims
Commissions
Underwriting Result
Credit Union Rebates

Insurance Claims, Commission and Rebates

Total Underwriting Result after Commission and Rebates
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2012

Claims Estimates and Risk Margin
The policy liabilities have been determined by Peter Davies B.Bus Sc., FIA, FNZSA.

The actuary is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data from which the policy liabilities have been determined. The actuary’s report for the Association
is based on data as at 31 May 2012. The actuary’s report for Credit Union Insurance Limited is based on data as at 30 June 2012. The Actuary’s
report had no qualifications.

Association Life and Other

The Association’s insurance contracts consist of group schemes providing death, disability, redundancy, trauma and bankruptcy benefits on a unit
rated basis, and a group scheme providing funeral benefits on the basis of individually rated premiums.

All covers are written on a basis of monthly premiums received at the end of the month. The policy liabilities comprise the following:

— A provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), calculated separately for life insurance and LOANMINDER (disability, redundancy, trauma
and bankruptcy cover products) respectively

— Areceivable in respect of premiums due

— A provision for the remaining payments expected to be made on disability, redundancy, and bankruptcy claims that have been notified and
remain open.

The IBNR provisions for death, disability, redundancy, trauma and bankruptcy claims respectively have been calculated using a chain ladder method

applied to past claim reporting patterns, and the average size of claims incurred in the past.

The provision for open disability claims has been based on past claim termination patterns, applied to the insured benefit of notified claims. Ciaims

provisions have been discounted using an interest rate of 2.24% per annum (2011: 3.24%).

All pending trauma and redundancy claims have been provided for at their face value.

Life insurance claims notified but not paid are provided for separately in the Statement of Financial Position at their face value.

The average expected term 1o setflement of Other Assoclation Insurance outstanding claims as at 30 June 2012 was approximately 6.0 months

(2011 : 6.0 months).

Motor Vehicle Insurance

The claims estimation process commences with the projection of the future payments relating to claims incurred at the reporting date. The expected

future payments include those in relation to claims reported but not yet paid in full {BNR) and claims closed that may be reopened.

The estimation of the outstanding claims liability is based on advice from independent professional assessors. These may be supplemented over the
life of the claim by revisions, made by experienced claims staff as the claim develops. The estimates are reduced by actual claims payments made.
A percentage factor is added to allow for claims that are closed at balance date but will be reopened. This is calculated by analysing past claims to
determine the historical incidence of claims being reopened. An overhead and risk margin is added to arrive at the final liability estimate.

The IBNR provision is based on a conventional chain ladder method applied to the cost of claims reported to date in respect of each month of

loss.

An additional risk margin is maintained in the claim provisions to ensure a greater than 50% likelihood of the sufficiency of the provisions. The actuary
has recommended a risk margin of 8.5% (2011 : 8.5%), which provides a likelihood of sufficiency of 75% (2011 : 75%). The Board has elected to
use a risk Margin of 17% (2011 : 18.5%) which gives a 90% likelihood of sufficiency.

Insurance costs are subject to inflationary pressure over time. However the period between the valuation date and the settlement of most claims is
relatively short so any increase in costs as a result of inflation is limited. Also, due to the short settlement periods the effect of discounting expected
future payments is also limited and with these two elements being small and acting in opposite directions, both have been ignored.

Expected Recoveries Receivable is calculated by discounting the Recoveries Debtors ledger by a range of factors and then adding on an allowance
to recognise that a portion of the Outstanding Claims Liability will also be recovered. The Recoveries Debtors ledger is divided into three categories;
debts where liability is acknowledged and covered by other insurance companies, debts where the debtor has acknowledged liability and entered
into a payment arrangement, and remaining debts where the liability is either disputed or no payment arrangement is yet entered into.

Recoveries Receivable from other insurers are not discounted. Receivables under payment arrangements are discounted by 20% and the balance of
receivables are discounted by 50% to 100% depending on age.

At balance date a percentage of the Outstanding Claims Liability is added to the Expected Recoveries Receivable. The percentage is based on
historical monies recovered against claims paid.

The average expected term to settlement of Motor Vehicle insurance outstanding claims was approximately 39 days (2011 : 43 days).
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2012
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2012

GROUP ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011

Composition of Qutstanding Claims Liability
Life Insurance

Outstanding claims

IBNR

Closing Claims Liability
Other Association Insurance
Outstanding claims

IBNR

Closing Claims Liability
Motor Vehicle Insurance

Outstanding claims

Risk Margin

Indirect Claims Management
IBNR

Closing Gross Claims Liability

Closing Expected Recoveries

Motor Vehicle Insurance

Insurance Contract Risk Management

A key risk from operating in the insurance industry is exposure to insurance risk arising from underwriting insurance contracts. The insurance
contracts transfer tisk to the insurer by indemnifying the policyholders against adverse affects arising from the occurrence of specified uncertain
future events. The risk is that the actual claims to be paid in relation to contracts will be different to that estimated at the time a product was
designed and priced. The Group is exposed to this risk because the price for a contract must be set before the losses relating to the product are
known. Hence the insurance business involves inherent uncertainty. This risk is mitigated in the Association’s insurance products as all policies are
monthly renewable and there is no effective contractual price risk.

Afundamental part of the overall risk management strategy is the effective governance and management of the risks that impact the amount, timing
and uncertainty of cash flows arising from insurance contracts.

Capital Management

The Association’s policy is to manage its capital on a basis of 125% of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand’s minimum solvency requirement for
insurers. The Directors believe that the Association has complied with this policy. The Association has a policy to at least maintain its long term
counterparty credit rating. On 11 December 2011 of “BB+ Stable” was achieved.

Risk Management Objectives and Policies for Mitigating Insurance Risk

Risk management activities can be broadly separated into underwriting, claims management, reserving and investment management.

The objective of these risk management functions is to enhance the longer term financial performance of the overall insurance operations.

The key policies in place to mitigate risks arising from underwriting insurance contracts include the following:

Acceptance of Risk - the Group restricts its lines of business primarily to group unit rated consumer credit insurance (Life and LOANMINDER), and
motor vehicle insurance. The consumer credit business is sold exclusively to the Association’s Member Credit Unions. Records of results and trends
achieved for each seller of insurance for all lines of business are analysed carefully and sellers whose portfolios are returning unacceptable levels of
risk either have their price adjusted accordingly or lose their right to sell policies for the Group.

Pricing — the primary lines of business are backed by historical underwriting results. This enables the Group’s underwriters to calculate acceptable
pricing and terms of cover.
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Reinsurance — the Association does not maintain reinsurance cover as its historical underwriting surpluses are such that in the Directors view

there are sufficient underwriting surpluses being generated to be able to meet the obligations that would otherwise have been met by a catastrophe
reinsurer. Credit Union Insurance Limited (the “Company™) has a reinsurance programme structured to adequately protect the Company's solvency
and capital position. It covers third party property damage and own damage catastrophe single event protection. Through reinsurance the Company
has been able to cap its maximum liability in the event of an accident to $100,000. This amount is well within the company’s reserves. The
company’s reinsurer is Munich Re which has a credit rating of “AA-".

Claims Management - claims are handled in-house by the Group’s own claims department. Staff are allocated settling limits and authorities
commensurate with their levels of experience. These authority limits are reviewed regularly. Overall authority and claims management for both the
Association and Credit Union Insurance Limited is provided by the Credit Union insurance Limited Claims & Service Centre Manager who has over
twenty years experience in the industry. Claims files are regularly audited on a random basis.

Investment Management — other than Government Stock investment, all premium income is held in bank accounts and short term deposits with the
Association.

Geographical Spread - the Group regularly analyses and reviews its geographical spread of risk to ensure its insurance operations are not
overexposed in any one region.
Terms and Conditions of Insurance Contracts

The Group’s insurance contracts written are entered into on a standard form and on a monthly or annual payment basis. There are no special terms
and conditions in any non standard contracts that would have a material impact on the financial report.

Credit Risk

Financial assets or liabilities arising from insurance contracts are presented on the Statement of Financial Position. These amounts best represent the
maximum credit risk exposure at reporting date. The Association’s credit risk exposure on its insurance contracts relates exclusively to credit unions.
The credit risk relating to Credit Union Insurance Limited’s motor vehicle insurance contracts relates primarily to premium receivable which is due
from credit union intermediiaries.

Interest Rate Risk

The underwriting of the disability component of the LOANMINDER product creates an exposure to interest rate risk because the termination dates of
the outstanding claims liability vary according to the term of the underlying loan or savings account. However this exposure has historically been low
as approximately 90% of claims terminate within 12 months. The underwriting of life and motor vehicle insurance contracts creates no exposure to
the risk that interest rate movements may impact the value of the outstanding claims liability. The outstanding claims liability is not discounted due to
the very short term nature of the claims. )

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the rigk of financial loss (including lost opportunities) resulting from external events and/or inadequate or failed internal processes,

people and systems. Operational risk is identified and assessed on an ongoing basis and the capital management strategy includes consideration of
. operational risk. Management and staff are responsible for identifying, assessing and managing operational risks in accordance with their roles and

responsibilities.

Insurance Rating

The Association has a long term counterparty credit rating of 'BB+ Stable’ issued by Standard & Poor’s on 12 December 2011. Credit Union

Insurance Limited has a Financial Strength rating of ‘BB Stable’ issued by Standard & Poor’s on 19 June 2012.

8. Impairment

GROUP ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000

Movement in Provisions in respect of:
Loans Receivable
Revaluation in Investments

Amounts written off in respect of:
Loans Receivable
IMPAIRMENT EXPENSES/(RECOVERIES)

Refer to notes 14 and 16 for further information.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2012

Taxation

9.

ASSOCIATION

2012

_$000

GROUP

2011

2011

5000

2012

$000

Profit / (Loss) before Taxation

Income Tax at current rate of 28%

i

Exempt Income

iy
T

Non Deductible Expenses

Movement in Temporary Differences (not recognised)

Prior Period Adjustments

at

Utilisation of Tax Losses (not previously recognised)

TAXATION EXPENSE

Unrecognised Deferred Tax Balances

The following net deferred tax assets have not been recognised:

Tax Losses

Temporary Differences

Taxation losses incurred in subsidiary entities have not been recognised because there is not sufficient probability of taxation profits in the

proceeding year to offset such losses. Tax losses are subject to the Inland Revenue Departments assessment in the next tax return.

page 30 New Zealand Association of Credit Unions ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Charged to Income Closing Balance

Opening Balance

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are comprised as follows:

GROUP
2012

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2012
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2012

10. Base Capital Notes

GROUP & ASSOCIATION GROUP & ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011
000 000 $000 < $000

Issue |
Issue Il

The Rules of the Association provide for the creation of the NZACU Business Services Division Trust (“ihe Business Services Division”). Base
Capital Notes are those unsecured subordinated Capital Notes forming the capital of the Business Services Division. All notes qualify for
Dividends as determined by the Directors.

GROUP & ASSOCIATION GROUP & ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011

000 000 $000 $000

Issue |
Balance at 1 July
Notes redeemed by transfer to Base Capital Notes Il

Balance at 30 June

Base Capital Notes Issue | have a face value of $10,000 and are the qualifying Base Capital Notes for membership of the Business Services
Division. All Member Services Division members are entitled to apply for one only Base Capital Note Issue One.

GROUP & ASSOCIATION GROUP & ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011
000 000 $000 $000

Issue I

Balance at 1 July

Notes issued:

For capitalisation of Dividends and Rebates
For capitalisation of Stabilisation Fund

By transfer from Base Capital Notes |

Balance at 30 June

Base Capital Notes Issue Il have a face value of $1.

Base Capital Notes Issues constitute unsecured subordinated obligations of the Business Services Division and rank pari passu and without
priority or preference among themselves.

The obligations of the Business Services Division to the Base Capital Noteholders are contained in the Regulations of the Business Services
Divigion.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2012

11. Reserves GROUP ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000

Stabilisation Fund Reserve

Balance at 1 July

Transferred from/(to) Retained Earnings
TOTAL RESERVES

Under the Rules of the Association, the Stabilisation Fund is operated as a separate self administered fund within the Association, under the
control of Stabilisation Managers (Refer note 35).

12. Accumulated Losses

GROUP ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000
Balance at 1 July 664) 3813 gy 28}
Operating Profit

Transferred from Stabilisation Fund Reserve

Base Capital Note Dividends
TOTAL ACCUMULATED LOSSES

The net profit for the years ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011 have been transferred to Accumulated Losses.

In 2011 the remaining balance of the Stabilisation Fund was repaid to Members.

- = e ASSOCIATION

Member Services Division
Business Services Division

Member Services Division Retained Earnings at 30 June 2012 includes the Retained Earnings of the New Zealand Credit Union Foundation of
$99,000 (380 June 2011 $98,000). Refer note 36.

13. Cash and Cash Equivalents

GROUP ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 $000
- ‘ E—

Cash at Bank
Bank Call Deposits
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2012

14. Accounts Receivable

GROUP ASSOCIATION
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 $000

Trade Receivables
Receivable from Subsidiaries
‘Future Funded Premiums

Insurance Premiums Due
Provision for Cancellation

Total Carrying Amount

Provision for Cancellation

Collective Provision Against Insurance Premiums Due
Balance at Beginning of the Year

Movement in provision

Balance at End of the Year

Past Due Receivables Not Impaired
Trade Receivables

Total Past Due Receivables Not Impaired

Aging of Past Due Receivables Not Impaired
Past Due 1-30 days

Past Due 31-90 days

Past Due over 90 days

Balance at End of the Year

In respect of the Association, Trade Receivables and Insurance Premiums are due almost exclusively from Member Credit Unions. There is no
Provision for Bad Debts (2011: $Nil) and there has been no write off (2011: $Nil) in respect of bad and doubtful debts.

The average credit period is 30 days. Apart from the above, none of the past due receivables have been provided for because past experience
indicates that such amounts are generally recoverable.

Future Funded Premiums are the outstanding premiums owed under policies of insurance paid monthly.

In respect of the Group, there is a provision for cancellation of $7,000 for outstanding insurance premiums relating to policies issued by Credit
Union Insurance Limited (2011: $6,000)

Refer aiso to note 31 for Related Party Disclosures.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2012

15. Investments

GROUP ASSOCIATION

Bank Deposits

Advances to Subsidiaries
Money Market Securities
Government Stock
Floating Rate Notes

Investment Bonds
Provision for Credit Impairment

Total Carrying Amount

Testing for impairment on the investment bonds held in the CU Group Trust was undertaken on the value in use basis applied to the individual
cash generating units in which the CU Group Trust invests. A provision for credit impairment of $10,808,000 (2011: $11,147,000} is in place
in respect of the underlying investments in NZCU Finance Limited and Credit Union Insurance Limited as at 30 June 2012. The provision in
respect of NZCU Finance Limited of $3,808,000 covers the remaining investment.

The provision in respect of Credit Union Insurance Limited of $7,000,000 (2011 $7,339,000) was reviewed based on detailed cash flow
forecasts for the four years to 30 June 2016. Key assumptions in this forecast were no sales growth , a loss ratio of 58.0% and a discount rate
of 10%. The valuation indicated that the asset was undervalued and the Directors decided to write back $339,000 of the impairment to fairty
value the investments. The remaining provision was deemed appropriate.

All investments are measured at amortised cost less impairment, with the exception of Government Stock which is measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Refer also to note 31 for Related Party Disclosures.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2012

16. Loans Receivable

GROUP ASSOCIATION

Gross Loans Receivable
Provision for Credit Impairment

Total Carrying Amount

Provision for Credit Impairment
Individually Impaired Loans
Balance at Beginning of the Year
New Provisions during the Year
Amounts Released/Written Off
Balance at End of the Year

Collective Provision Against Loans
Balance at Beginning of the Year
Amounts Released/Written Off
Balance at End of the Year

Total Provision for Credit Impairment

Aging of Individually Impaired Loans
Past Due 0-30 days

Past Due 31-90 days

Past Due over 90 days

Balance at End of the Year

i

i

e

b A
o

Aging of Past Due but not Individually Impaired Loans
Past Due 0-30 days

Past Due 31-90 days

Past Due over 90 days

Balance at End of the Year

Loans were all written on a secured basis. In relation to the Association there is one outstanding loan which is secured against a mix of mainly
residential loans and some business loans, generally under-pinned by second mortgages. In addition we have the guarantee of the borrower
supported by an estimated equity position of approximately $2,000,000. There were three other loans retained by NZCU Finance Limited

at balance date. These loans were originally secured by caveats or second mortgages. But after sales by first mortgagees, two are now
unsecured and fully provided. The third was fully settled after balance date.

There are nine additional partially secured loans for which NZCU Finance Limited is entitlied to a majority share of the actual collections. These
are currently under legal action for recovery. These loans are fully provided pending recovery action,

At balance date there were no restructured loans (2011: no restructured loans), against which there is a collective provision of nil (201 1: nil).
There were no assets acquired through enforcement of security.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2012
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Liabilities and Members Funds
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2012

Interest Rate Swap Contracts

The Association offers an interest rate swap facility to Credit Unions. It is the Association’s policy to economically hedge this risk as it arises by
entering into back to back matching transactions with Registered Bank counterparties.

The foliowing tables detail the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding at balance date:

Average Fixed Notional Principal Fair Value
Interest Rate Amount
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
% % $000 $000 $000 $000

Outstanding ‘Receive Floating Pay
Fixed’ Contracts

Less than 1 year 7.95%
110 2 years N/A
210 5 years N/A
Average Fixed Notional Principal Fair Value
Interest Rate Amount
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
% % $000 $000 $000 $000

Outstanding ‘Receive Fixed Pay
Floating’ Contracts

Less than 1 year 8.05%
1to 2 years N/A
2 to 5 years N/A

The interest rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis. The floating rate on the interest rate swaps is the local interbank rate. The Group will settle the
difference between the fixed and floating interest rate on a net basis.

Credit Risk Management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.

Risk is minimised by the maintenance of a well diversified investment portfolio with controls over maturity, counterparty and concentration of
investments. All investments in the CU Group Trust are authorised by the NZACU Board. Investments undertaken directly by Central Banking, with
the exception of those with non-rated counterparties, must be with counterparties holding a minimum credit rating of A2 (short term) or BBB (long
term) from Standard & Poors or an equivalent rating agency. - A maximum of 15% of the Central Banking controlled investment portfolio may be
invested at any time with non-rated counterparties.

Accounts receivable are concentrated amongst Credit Unions.

The carrying amounts of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which are net of impairment losses, represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Group will have difficulty in meeting commitments associated with its financial liabilities and future commitments. The
Group manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient liquid funds to meet its commitments based on historical and forecast cash
flow needs. Subsidiary companies are required to maintain their bank accounts and place all surplus liquidity with the Association’s Central Banking
department. The Central Banking department is responsible for all external banking and funding relationships. Through this level of centralised
control, the Group monitors its overall liquidity position on a daily basis and forecasts cash flows from operating activities taking account of the

cash flow characteristics and expected volatility in the balances of the various classes of recognised assets and liabilities, budgeted and forecast
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k exposure limits of the Central Banking department is detailed in a policy manual which

1S

The activity and r

is reviewed annually by the NZACU Board. Amongst other matters

Investment.

cash flows and seasonal cash cycles

the policy manual addresses areas with a specific bearing on liquidity such as

i

Constraints and Lending Constraints. The policy manual requires that at least 50% of investments must be capable of being liquidated within five

days.

's remaining contractual maturity for their financial assets and liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial assets and liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows

’s and Association

The following tables detail the Group

GROUP

Group

Less than 3 months
3 months

total

$000

5+ years

1-2years 2-5 years

to 1 year

$000 $000 $000 $000

$000

Note

2012

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable

Investments

Loans Receivable

| Assets

inancia

F
Future Interest Receivable

ive

It

va

Der

| Assets

inancia

Total F
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ities

iabl

Deposits Received
Accounts Payable
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iab

Derivative Financial Li

Future Interest Payable
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Total F
Net Fi

| Assets

1a

mnanc

32

Unrecognised Commitments

ity Gap at 30 June 2012

iqu

Net L

2011

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable

Investments

Loans Receivable

Derivative Financial Assets
Future Interest Receivable
Total Financial Assets

Deposits Received
Accounts Payable

Derivative Financial Liabilities
Future Interest Payable

Total Financial Liabilities
Net Financial Assets

32

Unrecognised Commitments

Net Liquidity Gap at 30 June 2011
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ASSOCIATION
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Derivative Financial Liabilities
Future Interest Payable

Total Financial Liabilities
Net Financial Assets

32

Unrecognised Commitments

Net Liquidity Gap at 30 June 2011

$7,600,000). The facilities are secured by charges over

interest bearing Investments. Utilisation of credit facilities at 30 June 2012 was $1,147,000 (2011 $685,000). The Group expects to meet

its obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets.

The Group and Association has access to financing facilities of $7,600,000 (2011
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2012

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets is determined
with reference to quoted market prices; and

- the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available, use is made of discounted cash
flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Fair Value Measurements Recognised in the Statement of Financial Position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

— Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market date (unobservable inputs).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 30 June 2012 $000 $000 $000 $000

GROUP

Financial assets at Fair Value
- Derivative financial assets

- Bond (Government)

Financial liabilities at Fair Value
- Derivative financial liabilities

ASSOCIATION

Financial assets at Fair Value
- Derivative financial assets

- Bond (Government)

Financial liabilities at Fair Value
- Derivative financial liabilities

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the period.
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Level 3 Total

Level 2

Level 1

$000 $000

$000

$000

As at 30 June 2011

GROUP
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| assets at fai

inancia
Deri

Fi

financ
Government)

ive
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Value

| assets at Fair
- Derivative financial assets
- Bond (Government)

inancia

Fi

‘o
Tion

St

Financial liabilities at Fair Value

- Derivative financial liabilities

jod

the peri

n

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2

ASSOCIATION

GROUP

I Instruments by Category

inancia

F

2011

2012

2011

2012

$000

$000

$000

$000

lue through the profit or loss

Ir va

ial assets at fa
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F

Investments
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| assets

1al
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f
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t or loss

Total assets at fair value through the prof

bles

Loans and receival

lents

va

Cash and cash equ

SR

ivable

Accounts recel

Loans receivable

Investments

Total loans and receivables

Total financial assets

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Deposits received

Accounts payable

Total other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss

Derivative financial liabilities

Total liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss

Total financial liabilities
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31. Related Party Disclosures
Parent Entity
The parent entity in the consolidated entity is the New Zealand Association of Credit Unions (the ‘Association’).

Equity Interests in Related Parties
Details of the equity interests held in subsidiaries and the joint operation are disclosed in note 30. The Association does not hold any other equity
interests.

Transactions with Related Parties

The Association provides funding to subsidiaries and the joint operation by way of purchasing investment bonds issued by them. The bonds are
unsecured but if the issuer is unable to repay the full amount owing at repayment date then the Association is granted a charge over all present and
after acquired assets of the issuer. At 30 June 2012 the Association held investment bonds which are valued at $3,381,000 (2011: $2,055,000).

At 30 June 2012 interest of $102,000 (2011: $102,000) was payable to the Association in respect of these bonds.

The Association provides unsecured overdraft facilities to subsidiaries and the joint operation. At 30 June 2012 overdraft facilities available totalled
$180,000 (2011: $120,000). The total drawn down under these facilities at 30 June 2012 was $89,000 (2011: $83,000). Interest was charged
monthly on the outstanding balances during the year at rates of between 5.65% and 8.75% (2011: between 5.9% and 6.4%).

During the year the Association charged interest and facility fees on the investment bonds and overdraft facilities of $145,000 (2011: $216,000) to
subsidiaries and the joint operation.

The Association maintains bank accounts and short term deposit facilities for subsidiaries and the joint operation. All deposits are unsecured. At
30 June 2012 funds placed with the Association by subsidiaries and the joint operation totalled $3,174,000 (2011: $2,689,000). Interest is credited
monthly on the outstanding balances at commercial interest rates.

During the year the Association paid interest of $7 1,000 to subsidiaries and the joint operation (2011: $94,000).

During the year the Association charged fees to subsidiaries of $536,000 (2011: $267,000).

During the year the Association was charged fees by the subsidiaries of $284,000 (2011: $447,000).

During the year Fixed Assets valued at $70,160 were purchased by the Association from Credit Union Insurance Limited.
During the year Fixed Assets valued at $298,000 were sold to the joint operation in exchange for ordinary shares.

Key Management Personnel Compensation
The compensation of the Directors and executives, being the key management personnel of the entity, is set out below:

~ Group Association
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 $000

Short Term Employee Benefits

There were no other payments made to Key Management Personnel.

32. Commitments

Group Association
2012 2011 2012 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000

Undrawn advances under credit facilities
Capital expenditure

33. Contingent Liabilities

There are no material contingent fiabilities for year ended 30 June 2012 (2011: NIL).
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34. Notes to Statements of Cash Flow
a. Reconciliation of Net Result to Net Operating Cash Flows

Group Association
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 $000

Profit

Adjustments to reconcile operating profit /(loss)
to net cash flow from operating activities

Add/(less) non cash items:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Impairment Expense / (Recoveries)

Profit/(Loss) Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment
Unrealised Loss on Bond Investments

Add/(less) movement in Working Capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans Receivable
(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments
(Increase)/Decrease in Derivative Financial Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in Unearned Premium Liability
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in Life Insurance Liability
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Association Insurance Liability
Increase/(Decrease) in Motor Vehicle Insurance Liability
(

Increase/(Decrease) in Derivative Financial Liabilities

Add/(less) items classified as investing activities
Non Cash movement in Investments

Add items included within Financing Activities:
Non Cash movement in Deposits Received

Non Cash movement in Base Capital Notes

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

b. Treatment of Deposits Received

Cash receipts and payments from Deposits Received have been netted in the Statements of Cash Flow as the cash flows reflect the activities of
the Group’s and Association’s customer, rather than those of the Group and Association.
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35. Stabilisation Fund Reserve

Expenses
Operating Expenses
Operating Profit/(Loss)

A mesting of the Members of the Association on 22 May 2010 resolved to repay the Stabilisation Fund. The balance of the Fund was distributed
to Members in the year to 30 June 2011.

36. New Zealand Credit Union Foundation

Included in the financial statements are the following assets of the New Zealand Credit Union Foundation. The Foundation is a self-administered
fund within the Member Services Division of the Association, established pursuant to the Rules of the Association with the objective of promoting
and assisting in the development of Credit Unions both in New Zealand and overseas. It is administered by a Board of up to five Foundation
Managers appointed by the Board of the New Zealand Association of Credit Unions.

Group Association
2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 $000
Current Assets ' o i
Cash
NET ASSETS

Donations, Interest and Grants received
Grant paid
OPERATING SURPLUS

37. Member Services Division Operating Surplus

Stabilisation

New Zealand Credit Union Foundation
MSD Operations

TOTAL

38. Events After the Balance Sheet Date
The Directors have declared a final dividend of $389,600 and a special dividend of $200,000 payable on 30 September 2012.
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OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SIMON SCOTT
Chair

Elected to the Board in September 2009
Director, Credit Union Insurance Limited

ROB NICHOLLS
Independent Director

Director, Credit Union Insurance Limited
Other responsibilities:
Chair, NZACU Audit & Risk Committee

Manager, NZACU Stabilisation Fund
Director, CU Securities Limited

Other responsibilities:
Manager, NZACU Stabilisation Fund
Director, CU Securities Limited

MALCOLM BLAIR
Vice Chair

Elected to the Board in September 2010
Director, Credit Union Insurance Limited

BRIAN HANCOCK
Director

Appointed to the Board in December 2009
Elected to the Board in September 2010

Other responsibilities: Director, Credit Union Insurance Limited

Trustee, NZACU
Member, Audit and Risk Committee
Member, NZACU Stabilisation Fund

Other responsibilities:

Trustee, NZACU

Member, NZACU Audit and Risk Committes
Manager, NZACU Stabilisation Fund

GRAHAM CLOUSTON
Director

HENRY LYNCH
CEQ & Director (ex-Officio)

Appointed to the CEO role and the Board in
September 2010

Director, Credit Union Insurance Limited
Director, NZ Bureau Limited

Elected to the Board in September 2009
Director, Credit Union Insurance Limited

Other responsibilities:
Trustee, NZACU
Manager, NZACU Stabilisation Fund

TOTAL
ASSOCIATION
FEES

S SCOTT DIRECTOR 1/7/2011-30/6/2012 $46,869

DEPUTY CHAIR | 1/7/2011-4/9/2011

CHAIR 4/9/2011-30/6/2012
B ROSS DIRECTOR 1/7/2011-26/4/2012 $20,830 NIL |
M BLAIR DIRECTOR 1/7/2011-30/6/2012 $30,206 NIL

DEPUTY CHAIR | 4/9/2011-30/6/2012
A &R COMM 1/7/2011-30/6/2012

G CLOUSTON | DIRECTOR 1/7/2011-3-/6/2012 $25,000 NIL
CHAIR 1/7/2011-4/9/2011
B HANCOCK | DIRECTOR 1/7/2011-30/6/2012 $24,997
A &R COMM 1/7/2011-30/6/2012 $250
R NICHOLLS | DIRECTOR 1/7/2011-30/6/2012 $31,248
AUDIT CHAIR | 1/7/2011-30/6/2012 $750 s e ' ,
TOTAL { $179,150 $1,000 |- ' ,},31180;,150 o0 $180,150

Board of Directors/Audit & Risk Committee Meetings

S Scott B Ross M Blair . G Clouston - B Hancock - R Nicholls  HLynch

Formal Board Meetings 12/12 4/10 12/12 12/12 12/12 11/12 12/12

Audit & Risk Committee Meetings 6/6 6/6 6/6

B'Ross resigned on 26 April 2012
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DIRECTORY

NEW ZEALAND ASSOCIATION
OF CREDIT UNIONS

REGISTERED OFFICE
Level 3, 25 Teed Street
Newmarket, Auckland, 1149

POSTAL ADDRESS
PO Box 9582, Newmarket
Auckland 1149

TELEPHONE
+64 9 520 0451

EMAIL

enquiries@nzacu.org.nz

WEBSITE
WWW.NZacu.org.nz

SOLICITORS
Bell Gully

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
PriceWaterhouseCoopers

INTERNAL AUDITORS
William Buck  (to 30 June 2012)
Deloitte (from 1 July 2012)
BANKERS

Westpac Institutional Bank

INSURERS
Crombie Lockwood Insurance Brokers

EXECUTIVE TEAM
Henry Lynch Chief Executive Officer
David Smart Chief Financial Officer

Jonathan Lee
Deane Johns

General Manager Business Development

‘Chief Information Officer

LEADERSHIP TEAM

Alison Buck
Diane Ellis

Glen Hill

Hugh Floyd

John Lanyon
Margaret Fleming
Mark Faulkner
Peter Miles
Rodney Brown
Yvonne Tuionetoa

Group Product Manager

Executive Assistant

Accounting Manager

Manager Banking Services

Credit Union Insurance Manager
Leamning & Development Manager
Service Delivery Manager

Central Banking Manager

Group Risk & Compliance Manager
PR & Communications Manager
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